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COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good morning. My
name is Jim Gennaro, Chair of the New York City
Council Committee on Environmental Protection, and
1"d like to welcome you to this hearing.

Today the Committee will hear
testimony on a very important matter, the future of
Jamaica Bay. See, | got this place, 1 was out there
on the bay, 1 got my pin, I"m all set.

October 27th of this year marked the
30th anniversary of Gateway National Recreational
Area, which in large part includes Jamaica Bay.

In fact, Gateway was the first urban
national park created, and has brought the national
park experience to the residents of the New York
City area.

One of the first tasks undertaken in
creating Gateway was to remove the tons of debris
that has been dumped along Jamaica Bay"s shorelines
for decades.

Years ago the bay was not in a good
state and was considered by some to be nothing more
than a smelly swamp. Today, after much clean-up and
stricter environmental regulations, Jamaica Bay is

an oasis of great ecological importance, offering a
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COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

sanctuary to more than 300 species of birds and
nearly 100 species of fish, as well as amphibians,
reptiles and small mammals.

Now, when 1 was out on the bay the
other day, I didn"t actually count all 300 species,
I counted some but not all of them. I"m so excited
having been out there, it was terrific.

However, for the base marshlands, who
serve as nesting and feeding areas for an abundance
of birds and other wildlife and perform the central
role in controlling floods and protecting Brooklyn
and Queens shorefront from storms and erosion, they
are rapidly and mysteriously vanishing, and numerous
theories have surfaced that attempt to explain this
phenomenon, such as Ffilling and dredging of the bay,
treated wastewater from some of the City"s sewerage
treatment plants that is released into the bay,
changes in the title flows, which have adversely
affected sediment flows iIn the bay, a rise in sea
level as a result of global warming, and the growing
population of geese eating marsh grass buds before
they can grow.

Nonetheless, the scientific and

environmental community has yet to determine a
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definite cause which brings us to today"s hearing
and we"re going to figure this all out, again, by
1:00.

We may not know the cause behind the
erosion of marshlands of Jamaica Bay, but we surely
cannot afford to sit back and watch them vanish
before our eyes.

It is the hope of this Committee that
testimony presented today will provide the New York
City Council with the information necessary to
develop a Jamaica Bay preservation action plan.
Certainly we want to have a role in that, but there
are many other good people who have come before us
who have done great work and who continue to do work
and 1 think we just want to try to play our small
role, you know, to try to catalyze that.

Simply put, it"s vitally important
that this Committee work together with the
scientific and environmental community to rescue the
marshlands of Jamaica Bay. And on a personal note
1"d like to thank all the folks from Gateway who
took us out on the water the other day, it was a
great experience, and it got us all excited.

I would also like to thank the staff
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of the Committee, Donna DeCostanzo and Richard
Colon, for their work in bringing this hearing
about, and I would certainly like to recognize my
colleague Oliver Koppell, former Chair of the
Environmental Committee of the New York State
Assembly, for his interest in this issue, and 1°d
like to call our first panel, DEP Commissioner Chris
Ward and his associates.

COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,
if I just might?

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, sure.

COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: 1 want to
indicate my support for the Committee"s work in this
area and apologize because I will not be able to
stay for the entire hearing, but will certainly read
all the testimony, and | appreciate your
consideration.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

And, so, our First panel, | already
mentioned Commissioner Ward, and James Mueller,
Director of Planning for DEP, and Alfonso Lopez, is
that -- there it is, Alfonso Lopez.

So, thank you all very much for

coming. As we do always in this Committee, we do
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this oath thing, and we have Donna DeCostanzo, the
Counsel to the Committee, who will administer the
oath, and after that I would like you to state your
name for the record and proceed with your good
testimony.

MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your
right hand. In the testimony that you"re about to
give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the
whole truth and nothing but the truth?

COMMISSIONER WARD: 1 do, yes.

MR. MUELLER: Yes.

MR. LOPEZ: Yes.

MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER WARD: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Council Member Koppell, good to see you
again. | have a long presentation that 1°d like to
go through for the Committee today. 1 think the
Committee"s recognition and leadership on, (1) the
importance of Jamaica Bay, but at the same time the
complexity of issues that we face going forward
requires a stage setting, if you will, both on the
history of the Bay, somewhat of a sense of where the
Department of Environmental Protection has been with

its mandate and discuss the project specific and
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capital budget programs that we have, give you a bit
of a framework for the good science and
collaborative effort that has been going forward
with the Army Corps, the National Park Service, and
our other City agencies, to a sense give people a
context for where we might go and address this very
difficult issue, but, obviously, critical issue.

The first slide you have is a great
one in the sense that you are looking at a
navigational chart from 1899 which shows what
Jamaica Bay looked like over a century ago, and as
you can see, beach and broad channels located along
the southern portion of the bay are evident and had
similar depths as they do today, and Grassy Bay is
located in the northern portion and had depths
raising one to five feet. And as you can see,
Jamaica Bay was bordered mostly with tidal wetlands.

I use this slide because | think it"s
interesting in how often we think we know the
environment that we are seeking to protect, and 1
was struck when 1 read the book Gotham on the early
settlers of New York, Dutch and English settlers,
describe Manhattan, and the Island of Manhattan and

Long Island as these pristine gardens, these hedonic
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gardens untouched by human hands when, in fact, the
Island of Manhattan had been cultivated, had been
geographically changed and had been settled by the
Native Americans that dotted the Island, and they
were not looking at a pristine hedonic environment,
they were looking at a working society in a
functioning economy within a different ecological
setting.

So, | start with this slide to give
some context on how often we are thinking about our
ecology as a way that we are the first to come upon,
and that"s particularly iIn Jamaica Bay not the case.

As you can see in the next slide, in
the past century, but mostly in the past 40 to 60
years, Jamaica Bay has been altered by man®s
activities, population growth and urban development
have resulted in the hardening of shore lines on the
northern portion of the bay, thereby eliminating
most of the tidal wetlands. The Northern Channel has
been dredged to about 25 to 30 feet, and the Grassy
Bay was dredged to a maximum deputy of 50 feet to
support the development of JFK Airport and its
runways. And in the spirit of full disclosure, my

previous position had been with the Port Authority



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

11

COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
of New York and New Jersey and with intimately
involved with Kennedy Alrport issues.

The Broad Channel community has also
developed, which together with the JFK extension has
effectively separated Grassy Bay from the western
portion of Jamaica Bay.

So, what has been the environmental
impacts of this urbanization? Population growth and
the pollutant inputs into Jamaica Bay have obviously
increased over time.

And this table illustrates the forces
of the pollutants, the inputs and particularly
identifies the pollutants of concern, as well as
what the science community has identified as the
possible impact that these have had on the
ecosystems of Jamaica Bay.

During dry weather, this is an
innovation that I, as the recent Commissioner, have
really come to focus on, during dry weather the
combined sewer system servicing Jamaica Bay convey
only the sanitary flow to the water, or wastewater
treatment facility.

However, during large rainfalls, the

volume of sanitary and stormwater flow exceeds the
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capacity and this results in overflows known as the
CSO program or combined sewer.

And seepage and leachate from
landfills may contain elevated levels of toxic
materials which may affect aquatic and ventic life.

So, you can see that there are a
variety of potential impacts that are occurring in
and around Jamaica Bay which are loading, if you
will, the bay, and then having a variety of effects,
eutrophication, low dissolved oxygen for aquatic
life.

I think DEP, to its credit, has
recognized its role in addressing the long-term
ecology iIn Jamaica Bay, and what 1°d like to go
through now is a very aggressive capital intensive
program approach to addressing the potential
nutrient loading in the bay.

And 1711 start with the construction
of the four wastewater treatment facilities
servicing Jamaica Bay, which began in the
mid-thirties and was completed in the early 1950s.
And Al Lopez, we were out at the 26th Ward the other
day, and, again, the history of wastewater treatment

is a facility that we are essentially implementing a
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wastewater treatment plant, that was formulated a
master planning effort in | think around 1918, and
the foresighted wisdom of the City leaders then to
begin to put together a plan is what we are building
on, and the challenges are going to be will we put
together a plan for the next 100 years.

So, currently all the facilities are
meeting the secondary treatment goals of the Clean
Water Act; however, DEP has continued to expand and
modernize these facilities in order to provide a
much greater level of pollution abatement, and DEP
has spent, or is committed to spend $1.3 billion on
this expansion and modernization program.

In addition, DEP is currently under a
judicial order to develop a comprehensive nitrogen
control plan, for the bay, which may require
additional treatment and class.

We" 1l provide hard copies to the
Council so you can see (1) the four plants that are
around the bay, when they were built, the time for
completion, and then the system®s upgrades that we
are going through. But as | said, we will spend, or
we have spent, and then we will spend $1.3 billion

on the wastewater side.
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In addition, our combined sewer
overflow abatement program is part of our additional
efforts to control and reduce CSOs, and this started
with our Spring Creek facility in 1970. It"s
currently undergoing a design upgrade to the cost of
about $87 million, and construction of the 50
million gallon Paerdegat Basin storage facility was
recently begun, and this project alone is expected
to cost $300 million. And the wet weather capacity
of the Jamaica water treatment facility will be
expanded by 50 million gallons per day to reduce the
CS overflow in the Bergen Basin. And this will come
as part of a theme throughout where we are with this
community in Jamaica, but additional sewers are
being constructed to reduce CSOs to Thurston Basin,
a facility plan is being developed for Fresh Creek
that will likely require a storage facility and an
increase of wet weather capacity at the 26th Ward by
about 50 million mgd. So, as you can see we have an
integrated CSO wastewater treatment facility program
which is (1) capital intensive, but seeks to address
the capacity that we built on the wayside, augmented
with the CSO program.

Next, one of the main programs that
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we have implemented which has a high visibility to
New Yorkers and is a critical quality of life
indicator, has been our aggressive floatable
control, and this, as you can see on the slide, 1is
really addressing the discharge of floatables from
CSOs, and it presents both a quality of life and an
aesthetic problem.

Far too often, and 1 hope the Council
has seen DEP"s program in advertising to highlight
that sewer systems should not be litter receptacles.
When we have a storm surge and people have used the
sewer system to drop litter, it ends up on beaches
or floating in the bay.

Our floatable program with skimmer
boats and barriers is to address that problem, and
we issued just recently our water quality report
which has indicated the success of that floatable
program, and how much debris we are actually taking
out of the sewer system iIn making sure it doesn"t
wash up on City beaches.

Again educating New Yorkers will be a
real focus of ours that the sewer system is not a
litter program, we need to have the sewer system to

be part of that network and not the sanitation
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system.

Sewer system improvements have also
been significant for DEP, obviously to improve the
tributary system for Jamaica Bay. We"re building new
storm sewers to keep rainwater out of the sanitary
sewer systems, and we"re replacing sanitary systems
and redirecting existing ones where historically
they may have been candidly interconnected in an
inappropriate way.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Could you go
over that again? What was that last point?

COMMISSIONER WARD: Sure. We"re
upgrading the sewer system in the tributaries to
Jamaica Bay by (1) building new storm sewers to keep
the rainwater out of the sanitary sewer system. So,
we have the right capacity to handle the surges when
you"ve have a large rainfall and not have the
problem of sanitary discharge to the bay.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So right now
that area is largely served by combined sewers where
you have the sanitary and storm flow?

COMMISSIONER WARD: Right.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And, so, the

additional storm sewers that are going to be built
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will be dedicated storm sewers?

COMMISSIONER WARD: Right, increase
the storm sewer capacity.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It won"t ever go
to the plant, right?

COMMISSIONER WARD: Right, exactly.

And, again, we"re replacing some
systems where we had had overlap where we shouldn®t
have overlap, and we"re building new sanitary sewers
to pick up illegal discharges in areas not currently
served by sanitary sewers.

This program alone also will cost
about $100 million going forward.

Last, in terms of the actual
programmatic implementation from our capital plan, |
would like to talk a bit about landfill remediation,
and the Department is committed to remediating the
Pennsylvania Avenue and Fountain Avenue landfills.
Remediation plans include installation of a
geomembrane liner, a gas collection and flaring
system, and permanent grading of the fill in a
barrier protection soil layer, topsoil establishment
in order to create an environment appropriate for

the planting of vegetation for that ecosystem. And
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then over time the restoration of Penn and Fountain
could be a real ecological pilot project, which is
showing how you can close landfills, bring in
environmental remediation and then recreate an
environment the public can use for public access,
and we"re working with the Army Corps of Engineers
and the National Park Service to return that asset
to the Jamaica community.

But one of the things that 1
highlighted as the front of this presentation is
where are we in terms of knowing where the sources
of problems that are creating the loss of wetlands?

So, we have also, in addition to the
capital intensive program, run a very extensive
water quality monitoring and modeling program, and
we have been active iIn this and going back to the
early 1900s, and it"s known as our Harbor Survey
Program, and 1 would be glad to provide copies of
that, that was just published earlier this year.

But in order to better understand the
interrelationship between nutrient inputs, the
primary production in algae growth, as well as the
dissolved oxygen in the bay, we funded the Jamaica

Bay euthrophication study which led to the
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development of the euthrophication model, and
special water quality monitoring was conducted as
part of that effort. We need to build the science to
understand exactly what the solutions will be.

And the JEM, or the Jamaica Bay
Euthrophication Model, is currently being used to
assess the nutrient control needs and strategies for
the Department, but also for the region under the
judicial order for nitrogen control, as well as
working with the Army Corps of Engineers and their
ecosystem restoration project. And the total cost of
this study is going to probably be somewhere to be 2
to 3 million dollars, and it is the science that the
Corps will need and we will need to identify both
nitrogen and ecosystem restoration, what is the next
steps for our capital plan.

But we have worked hard at ecosystem
restoration out in the Jamaica Bay, and beginning
around 1996, DEP has been the local sponsor with the
Corps on this restoration project. As 1 said, we
provided about $3 million in both funding and
in-kind services. And the final stages of the
ecosystem restoration study will be completed in

2003. And while 1 recognize that 2003 seems like,
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you know, a long way off, the complexity and the
sensitivity of this system, and in a sense getting
the science right, is going to be critical and it
will be the basis of the Army Corps going forward to
seek authorization and funding from Congress, for
whatever are the necessary restoration projects that
this study has in fact identified.

But we have done a lot already, and
to be fair and candid, Jamaica Bay EcoWatchers are
really to be commended for identifying the issue of
wetland loss and bringing it to the attention of the
National Park Service.

In working with State DEC the
Department has confirmed a lot of the observations
made by the EcoWatchers. And DEC interestingly, and
this is a larger environmental question for the
region as a whole, that we have unfortunately
identified wetland loss as a regional issue, we need
to understand that this might not be, it is not just
Jamaica Bay and the sources and causes of wetland
loss might not only be found in a Jamaica Bay
strategy, but would be part of a much larger
regional wetland approach.

But faced with the loss of tidal



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

21

COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

wetlands, the National Park Service to its credit
convened a Blue Ribbon Panel comprised of national
experts in wetland functions and ecology to look
into what were the causes of the bay loss, and as
you can see in this chart there has been significant
loss and deterioration of wetlands in a variety of
the monitoring parts around this region, and
particularly the loss of Spartina in Jamaica Bay was
a sort of key ecological indicator that something
was wrong.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: These are the
results, or these are the findings of the Blue
Ribbon Panel, correct?

COMMISSIONER WARD: Correct.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And the Blue
Ribbon Panel was organized under the federal folks?

COMMISSIONER WARD: National Park
Service.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: National Park
Service.

COMMISSIONER WARD: Right.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: 1 expect that
you"ll be speaking --

COMMISSIONER WARD: 1°m sure they"ll
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talk at length.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

COMMISSIONER WARD: The box chart that
you saw earlier is just a comparative table of loss
of marshes at a variety of locations, highlighting
that it"s not solely Jamaica Bay that we need to be
concerned about, although it is important that there
is a regional question that we"re going to have to
address as well.

But let"s talk a bit about the
findings of that panel in the marshes of Jamaica
Bay. The marshes were originally built by sandy
sediments coming from the ocean inlet to Jamaica
Bay, and they were in a sense maintained by the
finer sediments moving with the tidal flow and the
land-side sources, you know, the natural erosion
that occurs, as well as the plant process, peat,
which was developing. And this was the sort of
baseline ecology that the Blue Ribbon Panel was
looking at, and 1 just give you some anecdotes here
of what might be the changes which have really
affected it.

The inlet moved to the west and

stabilized. Sediment movement near the inlet was
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managed, which is a sort of casual way of saying
that it was involved with dredging.

Barrier island and shore line
developed.

What has often been highlighted and
then identified as a potential problem was the work
that the Port Authority did at Kennedy Airport,
particularly as it relates to the runway. The Daily
News has written a lot about the issue of is that
flushing action which was lost as a result of the
runway extension part of the larger problem? And
then obviously what DEP has been in particular
concerned about, the nutrient loading from landfills
in wastewater sewage treatment facilities, and then,
finally, the whole regional questions about changes
in development in and around all of these wetland
areas.

But the Blue Ribbon Panel found the
following to be the likely primary contributor as to
wetland loss iIn Jamaica Bay.

The dredging, as 1 mentioned, the
high diversity of mussels that present proper marsh
drainage, and the extension and stabilization of the

Rockaway inlet.
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The extension and stabilization was
begun in the thirties and led to the construction of
the Jacob Reese Park and the Marine Parkway Bridge.
And it"s the interrelationship of these various
potential causes of marsh loss that we need to begin
to understand in a much better way.

And as this next slide makes clear,
it"s not only these primary ones that we"re focusing
on, but there are also going to be secondary
potential impacts.

The Ulva, the lettuce, the
natural-growing lettuce there might limit vegetation
and limit growth. The proliferation of jet ski"s and
boating which occurs in the bay might also be
contributing to marsh loss, and then sea level rise,
which you can see in this chart has been
accelerating and this is something that a variety of
locations are struggling with, in terms of how the
ecology is changing with sea level loss, and then
bird foraging during spring season reduces this
initial plant growth.

So, all of this the Blue Ribbon Panel
has really been working hard to struggle and find

where are the key interrelationships which has led
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to deterioration.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We have people
here who are going to speak to that, as well. |
think we have a member of the Blue Ribbon Panel, and
I think the federal folks are going to speak on

that. And, so, if we could sort of summarize, 1

guess.
COMMISSIONER WARD: Yes.
CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So if we could
sort of summarize, | guess, because | want to get to
COMMISSIONER WARD: 1711 finish right
now.

In summary, Jamaica Bay represents
the ecosystem of enormous complexity, but I would
hope that the Council would recognize that the
Department has been aggressive in its capital
planning efforts for wastewater treatment.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Obviously.

COMMISSIONER WARD: And that we are
committed to working with all of our partners to
find out what will be the next phase of the DEP
program and identification of a restoration project

for Jamaica Bay.
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CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank
you, Commissioner. Thank you for your comprehensive
testimony and thank you and your great people who
are doing so much to help this critical resource.

I just have a couple of things, |
made some notes during your presentation.

Before 1 begin, 1 would like to
acknowledge the presence of Council Member Serrano
from the Bronx, who has joined us. Thank you. Thanks
for being here, and we have some other guests as
well.

Hi. How is it going up there? Thanks
for coming.

My name is Jim Gennaro. 1"m Chair of
the Committee on Environmental Protection. Some
members of the Committee are hearing testimony from
the Commissioner of the Department of Environmental
Protection, Christopher Ward. That®"s him right
there. And we have other people here from the
federal government and we"re talking about Jamaica
Bay .

Has anybody heard of Jamaica Bay?
It"s a big bay. It"s a big bay. It"s very important.

It"s very, very important that we try to protect it
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so that when you grow up your kids and your
grandkids will have this great vital resource.

Now, let"s see what we"ve got here.
It looks like we"ve got, this is Public School 77
from Manhattan, and your Council Member is Eva
Moskowitz. Oh, you®ve got a great Council Member.
You folks are lucky. You folks are lucky to have
Eva, she®"s a great Council member.

Let"s see, this is fifth grade,
right? Fifth grade, good. Good, good, good. |
wouldn®t want to confuse you with fourth graders.
Fourth graders are small, you guys are big.

And Donna Savarian? Donna Savarian,
are you the teacher?

MS. SAVARIAN: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I*m a teacher,
too, at Queens College. So, as a teacher and as a
Council member, I welcome you to our City Hall here
and hope you have a great tour.

Okay, thanks very much. How about a
big round of applause for the kids from PS 77.
(Applause.)

Thank you. Say hi to Eva for me.

She®s a very good Council member. You"re very lucky
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to have her.

Okay, I was glad to hear about all
the great things you"re doing with regard to the
water treatment facilities there.

Now, we had some discussion the other
day, when we"re out on the bay, you know, since
we"ve stopped ocean dumping of the sludge ten years
ago, whatever it was, of course, everyone knows that
we process the stuff and we take the sludge, we
don"t dump it anymore out at sea, we put it through
the centrifuge or whatever, then you dry it, and
then you"ve got the cake or whatever comes out of
that, then that goes for beneficial reuse, and
you"ve got this liquid that"s been sort of squeezed
out of the sludge. Do you call that the centrate? Is
that right? Is that what you call it? Is that what
it's called?

COMMISSIONER WARD: Right.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And the centrate
is laced with nutrients. So, what are we going to do
with this stuff, right? So, It"s got to go back into
the plants. And, of course, this is a burden on the
plants 1"m sure, because that, you know, high

nutrient centrate, which used to get dumped out at
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sea now has to be fed back into the plants, correct?
And 1 think two of these plants -- 1 think all four
of these plants, of course, produce sludge, of
course, and then the sludge is processed. Two of
them 1 believe there? Two of them?

COMMISSIONER WARD: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And then the
centrate gets filtered back into two of the plants
also, right? Is that right? And, now, this has got
to create a real nutrient challenge for us to have
this stuff mixed back into the plants, I"m sure.

I"m just wondering if there"s any
other way. Now, what if -- maybe 1"m talking totally
out of school here, would it be a big help for the
nutrient loading for the, you know, Jamaica Bay
ecosystem, if that centrate did not get fed back
into the plants that ultimately discharge into
Jamaica Bay? Is that fair to say, that that would
help the nutrient loading, if that centrate didn"t
have to get funneled back into the plants? That
would be a fair statement?

COMMISSIONER WARD: Yes. In a sense
what you"ve raised, Councilman, is the next

generation of wastewater treatment, and our BNR
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Program, that Al Lopez can tell you about, is in
fact our next major capital upgrade for dealing with
nutrient loading.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just so | can
complete my thoughts so-to-speak, to give you the
benefit of responding to my whole concept such as it
is?

And, so, you know, one thought is
that, well, if that centrate didn"t have to get fed
into these plants, then maybe it could go some place
else or whatever, 1 don"t know, into these other
plants that would discharge it some place else. |
don"t know what kind of volume we"re talking about
of the centrate, or what the quality of the stuff
is, but 1 know that for example we"re capping the
landfills. We"re going to put some membrane line
over the landfill and we"re going to put a whole
bunch of dirt or whatever it iIs over that and we"re
going to create this natural area.

Would it be possible to use this
centrate to sort of disseminate it over the capped
area of the landfills, such that the centrate would
sort of almost be beneficially reused for the

purposes of nourishing the plant life that would be,
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you know, growing on top of the landfill, maybe if
we made the layer of dirt like a little thicker, so
we could like better assimilate this stuff? Or, |
don"t know, 1"m just trying to think outside the box
a little bit, because | see this centrate getting
sort of wrung out of the sludge and 1™m just
wondering if any of these concepts will make any
sense to figure. Because if it should be a goal to
keep the centrates kind of out of the plants that
feed into Jamaica Bay, if that is like a worthwhile
goal, then it could either go some place else or we
could find something creative to kind of do with it.
And we"re certainly beneficially reusing the solid
part of the sludge, and 1"m just thinking in my
dream of dreams if we could do something beneficial
with the centrate and have those nutrients used for
good like in this landfill cover, rather than for
evil so-to-speak, in the water.

COMMISSIONER WARD: Right.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, that"s my
concept.

COMMISSIONER WARD: Okay. Well, your
concept is a good one, and it"s one that DEP has

demonstrated particularly on Staten Island where we
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have created our Blue Belt Program where we are
using natural restoration ways of dealing with storm
overflow, so we"re not having to build large
combined sewer systems to capture that runoff
problem.

But that is really a storm sewer
solution, and it"s been very successful and we"ll be
back actually to the Council to talk about the
Midland Beach initiatives going forward.

Al Lopez will go through why for
Pennsylvania and Penn and Fountain the nutrient-rich
aspect of this centrate and the pathogens that are
associated with it is really not appropriate for
that type of reuse strategy, but we are addressing
the discharge issues through our BNR program, and Al
can give you a sense of both in terms of as you had
asked, the volume, and then the size and scope of
that program.

CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay .

You can"t spread the stuff out on the
thing, it"s not going to work.

MR. LOPEZ: No. Essentially what we"re
talking about is a liquid material, the centrate is

a liquid. 1t contains a pretty good amount of
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